Public Document Pack

Stacey Gilmour
Governance Officer
Direct: 020 8132 1383

e-mail: stacey.gilmour@enfield.gov.uk

HOUSING SCRUTINY PANEL
Thursday, 22nd September, 2022 at 7.00 pm in the Conference
Room, Civic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield, EN1 3XA
Membership:
co : Maria Alexandrou (Chair), Lee Chamberlain (Vice-Chair), Josh Abey,
Sinan Boztas, Hivran Dalkaya, Ayten Guzel, Nelly Gyosheva and Tom O'Halloran
AGENDA – PART 1
1.

WELCOME & APOLOGIES

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members of the Council are invited to identify any disclosable pecuniary,
other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests relevant to the items on the
agenda.

3.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 4)
To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 5 July 2022.

4.

ENFIELD REPAIRS DIRECT- OVERVIEW ON PROGRESS, DELIVERY,
RESPONSE TIMES AND OUT OF HOURS REPAIRS (Pages 5 - 14)
To receive the report of Martin Greenway, Head of Repairs & Estate
Services.

5.

SOCIAL HOUSING REGULATION BILL (Pages 15 - 26)
To receive the report of Joanne Drew, Acting Executive Director, Place.

1

6.

HOUSING GATEWAY LTD - PRIVATE RENTERS REFORM WHITE
PAPER (Pages 27 - 32)
To receive the report of Kayt Wilson, Head of Private Housing Solutions.

7.

WORK PROGRAMME 2022/23 (Pages 33 - 34)
To note the Housing Scrutiny Panel Work Programme for 2022/23.

8.

DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS
To note the dates of future meetings as follows:
Tuesday 29 November 2022
Wednesday 22 March 2023

2

Page 1

Agenda Item 3

HOUSING SCRUTINY PANEL - 5.7.2022

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE HOUSING SCRUTINY
PANEL HELD ON TUESDAY, 5TH JULY, 2022
MEMBERS: Councillors Maria Alexandrou (Chair), Josh Abey, Hivran Dalkaya,
Ayten Guzel and Tom O'Halloran.
Officers: Joanne Drew (Director of Housing & Regeneration), Stacey Gilmour
(Governance Officer)

Also Attending: Councillor George Savva, Cabinet Member for Social Housing

1.

WELCOME & APOLOGIES
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and introductions were made.
Apologies were received from Cllrs Lee Chamberlain (Vice-Chair) and Nelly
Gyosheva. Cllrs Elisa Morreale was substituting for Cllr Chamberlain and Cllr
Mustafa Cetinkaya was substituting for Cllr Gyosheva.

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
The Chair, Cllr Alexandrou, stated an interest as she is a landlord.

3.

INTRODUCTION-PURPOSE OF MEETING
The Chair explained that the panel will hear from the Cabinet Member for
Social Housing, Cllr George Savva and the Director of Housing &
Regeneration, Joanne Drew, outlining the department’s priorities and areas of
challenge for the upcoming municipal year. The Cabinet Member and Officer
would then be asked to leave the meeting at which point members of the
panel will discuss and agree the Housing Scrutiny Panel work programme for
2022/2023.

4.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
AGREED the minutes of the meeting held on 17 March 2022.

5.

TERMS OF REFERENCE
NOTED, for information, the attached Terms of Reference for the Housing
Scrutiny Panel.

6.

LOCAL PRIORITIES FOR 2022/23

Page 2
HOUSING SCRUTINY PANEL - 5.7.2022
The Chair invited Cllr George Savva, Cabinet Member, Social Housing and
Joanne Drew, Director of Housing & Regeneration to present the Local
Priorities for 2022/23, highlighting the following:






The remit of the Housing Scrutiny Panel is informed by two strategies
agreed by Cabinet.
Delivering on the Housing and Growth Strategy 2020:
o The housing crisis is currently a hot topic, with lots happening
regarding this from a Central Government perspective which
Local Governments need to respond to. It is therefore time for
Enfield to review its Housing Strategy to ensure that we provide
a balanced housing market for all.
o More affordable housing – this sits under the remit of the
Regeneration and Economic Development Scrutiny Panel.
o Being proud of and investing in our council homes to make sure
they provide safe and secure homes for future generations and
offer high-quality management services.
o Maintain clean and green estates and expand the Enfield
Repairs Direct Service.
o Support residents impacted on by the cost of living crisis
including access to employment.
o The Social Housing (Regulation) Bill aims to facilitate a new,
proactive approach to regulating social housing landlords on
consumer issues such as safety, transparency and tenant
engagement, with new enforcement powers to tackle failing
landlords.
o It aims to drive significant change in landlord behaviour to focus
on the needs of their tenants and ensure landlords are held to
account for their performance.
o Quality and variety in the private housing sector – many
vulnerable residents are living in the private sector, there is a
focus to intervene to improve and enable access for residents
Enfield Let was mobilised in October 2020, there are plans for
Housing Gateway growth.
o Private Renters Reform Bill- Renters to receive new rights to
challenge landlords in the biggest shake up in thirty years.
o A private renter’s Ombudsman will be appointed to settle disputes
between renters and landlords.
o Development of Housing Asset Management Strategy which
includes support for bringing dwellings up to EPC B (Energy
Performance Certificate)
Delivering the Homelessness Prevention Strategy 2020 - Making
homelessness something that is rare, brief and non-recurring:
o A better future for rough sleepers –permanent housing of
residents taken in during the pandemic.
o To enable everyone to access a stable, secure and decent
home regardless of tenure.
o Step in to prevent people from becoming homeless at the
earliest possible stage, rather than waiting until they have a
crisis.

Page 3
HOUSING SCRUTINY PANEL - 5.7.2022
o Equip people with the skills to manage a tenancy in the PRS
(private rented sector) through training and support.
o Reshape the housing market to improve access to housing in
the private rented sector for residents whilst improving quality.
o Housing Advisory Service -Aims within five years:
- Fewer than 500 households in Temporary Accommodation.
- No one in Temporary Accommodation for more than 6
months.
o Housing Advisory Service – Priorities 2022-23
- Prevention – preventing homelessness and improving
outcomes for residents is our top priority.
- Housing Supply – the supply of privately rented homes has
halved in 12 months.
- Security of tenure – the number of homelessness
presentations has doubled in 12 months, driven by PRS
evictions and the cost of living.
- Affordability – rents have risen and have outstripped benefit
levels.
o Information was provided on the Housing Gateway’s mission,
achievements and development 2022/23
o Ensure the service has the skills and capacity to deliver and
continue to work to ensure quality of living for everyone
Joanne Drew, Director of Housing & Regeneration made the following
suggestions of possible areas for scrutiny:







Social Housing Regulation Bill – what does the new bill involve? How
have we prepared for it and what does it look like for Enfield.
Private Renters Reform Bill – look at the affect of the bill on private
renting. Will this make it harder for us to place Enfield residents into
private housing?
Look at the position on empty homes along with how the economic
climate is affecting Enfield’s overall housing plans.
Housing Gateway – review progress that has been made.
Invite Housing Associations (HA’s) to a future meeting of the Housing
Scrutiny Panel to review/question.
Homelessness Service- review how the service is responding to people
during this cost of living rise.

Following the update above there were no further questions raised by
members of the panel, therefore Cllr Savva and Joanne Drew left the meeting
at this point.
7.

PLANNING THE WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2022/23
The Chair opened discussions in terms of the work programme. It was
suggested that there were two items per meeting, with three as a maximum
Following discussions, the process for extra meetings was confirmed.

Page 4
HOUSING SCRUTINY PANEL - 5.7.2022
Discussions were held on the most appropriate timings for items.
The following items and timings were agreed:
September’s meeting
Social Housing Regulation Bill
Private Renters Reform Bill
Enfield Repairs Direct – overview on progress, delivery, efficiency, response
times and out of hours repairs.
November’s meeting
Draft Housing & Good Growth Strategy
Delivery of Social & Affordable Housing (to include an update on Meridian
Water)
March’s meeting
Housing Gateway/Enfield Let - update
Temporary Accommodation and Empty Homes – levels and strategy to
reduce
Preventing Homelessness and Rough Sleeping – update & review of strategy
8.

DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS
NOTED the dates of future meetings as follows:
Thursday 22 September 2022
Tuesday 29 November 2022
Wednesday 22 March 2023.
These meetings will commence at 7:00pm and will be held in the Conference
Room at the Civic Centre.

Page 5

Agenda Item 4

London Borough of Enfield
Housing Scrutiny Panel
22 September 2022

Subject: Overview on progress, delivery, efficiency, response times and out of
hours repairs.
Cabinet Member: Cllr George Savva
Acting Executive Director: Joanne Drew

Purpose of Report
1.

This report reviews the key performance indicators of Enfield Repairs Direct
and details areas of success, areas of challenge and current & future
developments of the service.
Proposals
The Panel is invited to note the contents of the report and make comments,
suggestions or recommendations for further work or improvements.
Background

2.
3.

4.

The repairs service prior to May 20 was delivered by two repairs contracts
divided geographically.
In June 2019, the Cabinet approved the in-sourcing of the Housing Repairs
Service (KD4868). This service was launched in May 2020. In arriving at this
decision, Cabinet considered the wider feedback from service users. Firstly,
that residents wanted to register their repair to polite, helpful staff who could
diagnose their problems accurately and book a convenient appointment slot
with minimum customer effort. Secondly, there needs to be more reliability in
attending appointments and we achieve higher rates of ‘first time fix’. Finally,
that we communicate better to satisfactorily resolve repair issues including
improving how we handle escalations and complaint casework.
In February 2020 Cabinet reviewed a report (KD5070) detailing the design of
the service, a policy for repairs, timescales for delivery, a financial business
plan, branding and a service model with proposed timetable for the introduction
of defined functions:
 Housing Resolution Centre – align with the establishment of a new
Housing Hub set for January 2022.
 ERD direct labour force – established. Staff have been recruited firstly
on a temporary basis moving to permanent contracts. The market is
particularly challenging

Page 6




MOT service ceased due to covid restrictions although the team
has focussed on the treatment of damp & mould and ensuring
there is a robust winter service which ensures all of our elderly
and vulnerable customers are supported.
Active Asset Management – this has been developed further
and allows the Council a higher level of sophistication in asset
planning and management.

Regulatory Environment
5.

6.
7.

The Regulator of Social Housing (RSH) has introduced Tenant
Satisfaction Measures (TSMs) to be collected and reported during
2023-24. The measures would provide data about social housing
landlords’ performance and the quality of their services to help tenants
hold their landlord to account and help RSH in its future consumer
regulation role.
Satisfaction with repairs and the time taken to complete the most
recent repair are included within the Tenant Perception TSMs that will
be captured through an Annual Survey.
The last annual satisfaction survey undertaken in 2019 showed that
satisfaction with Enfield’s current repairs service showed that over half
(55%) of tenants are satisfied with the way the Housing Service deals
with repairs and maintenance, with a quarter of that number (24%)
very satisfied. In 2021 this figure had risen to 62%, up +7% from the
pre-insourcing survey.
Overview of the Repairs Team

Head of
Enfield
Repairs
Direct

ERDOperations

8.

9.

Estate
Repairs- Adaptations
Services
and
Contracts
Operations and Quality Accessible
Housing

Repairs,
Customer
Service,
Planning
and
Feedback

Voids and
Lettings

The organisational chart above outlines how functions are organised.
The structure is predicated on maximising efficiency so there are
several functions brought together or share common resources. Eg.
Estate Services and Repairs services share common demands for
fleet, materials, waste disposal etc.
Housing Resolution Centre The structure combines the customer

Page 7

10.

11.

12.

13.

service, planning and customer feedback/ complaints functions. There
are several business benefits to managing the end-to-end repairs
process as a whole. Firstly, it enables us to improve diagnosis
meaning improved efficiency down the chain. For instance, we are
more likely to dispatch the right tradesperson for the job and book the
appointment for the correct amount of time and there will be a greater
chance of having the right materials.
Communications with customers are important. Our integrated call
handling and planning functions working alongside technical staff are
best placed to deliver a slick high- volume service.
ERD Operations – The inhouse repairs operation is of critical
importance to the future success of the service. We do not wish to
over- rely on contractors as has been a problem in the past. Instead
our vision is to create a dedicated inhouse workforce with trained and
knowledgeable tradespeople, with apprenticeship programmes and
succession planning. The benefit of an inhouse service is that there is
greater control and accountability for the standard of work. Many of
our new staff are local to Enfield and have a connection to our
community. We have a training programme agreed which will enable
our staff to work safely, understand our systems and to be receive
further trade skill training.
ERD Tradespeople act as ambassadors for the Council. For many of
our residents this is one of the few direct interactions they have with
Council staff. For this reason, they have a public service opportunity
far wider than a contractor. Through our regular programme of toolbox
talks we can update on local initiatives the Council is undertaking as
well as a level of training in safeguarding, neglect and abuse training.
Contracts and Quality Team- To support the delivery of repairs we
have a back office and technical support team. This has had a positive
effect on delivery in several respects. As operational administrators for
our IT we can use real-time data to improve the speed and quality of
our responses. In addition, there is a data analyst function an
allowing us to review repairs demand, hotspots and identify responsive
repairs trends which may require a capital investment solution. For
instance, it may be more cost effective to bring forward a programmed
roof renewal rather than multiple repairs. Furthermore we are also
concerned to maximise productivity from our inhouse workforce as
well as monitor and challenge spend on materials and fuel.
Establishment of the Housing resolution Centre

14. One of the key drivers of creating a dedicated Contact Centre for
Housing repairs was to improve the customer journey and have the
process ‘from telephone to screwdriver’ all in one team. As agreed in
the plan a Housing Resolution Centre was established in January 22.
15. The service fields around 80,000 calls per annum resulting in 49,000
repairs orders being raised (30,000 of which through ERD).
Approximately 80% of those who were surveyed about the contact
centre were satisfied. The service is based at Edmonton Green and
co-located with technical staff and staff from other teams in Housing to
develop more of a joined-up approach.

Page 8
16. Performance in the Contact Centre has improved since the service
transferred to Housing with an increased answer rate alongside a
decreasing average wait time.
Housing Resolution Team
April

May

June

July

Calls offered

6853

7016

6508

5902

Calls handled

6078

6571

5884

5425

Call answer rate

88.69

93.7

90.40% 95.00% 85%

Average wait time

06:04

03:08

05:19

02:41

Target

03:00

17. Given that this is the ‘shop window’ for Enfield’s tenants and
leaseholders we have ambitions to further develop and improve the
service. We have devised a training plan to improve knowledge of the
building industry, customer service techniques and handling difficult
conversations. Furthermore we recognise that local knowledge is
crucial an we ensure staff are briefed on major works projects and
estate specific problems such as lift outages and communal heating
issues.
18. We have a performance management process in place to give us
assurance that call quality is high and we can give feedback to staff on
potential for improvement as part of our continuous improvement
drive. This involves call audits, listening to calls in real time and
coaching.
19. To improve the quality of service we give to our customers and reduce
call volumes we have devised a digital shift plan (see below). While
offering a comprehensive telephone service residents should be able
to book routine repairs online and engage in more digital interactions
with us. Reflecting societal shifts in behaviour we anticipate that there
will be a year on year tapering down in telephone demand and a
corresponding increase in digital transactions.

Page 9
Phase 1 – Improving our website content
Update the website to include a clear definition for emergency repairs
promote peak/quiet call centre times, Active Housing Link for reporting
repairs via eform (to Housingrepairs inbox), updated repairs
responsibilities table and search function

Target date

Sep-22

Training Housing Repairs Centre
to answer webchat queries and promoting digital channels

Sep-22

to give advice on other digital channels as a quick way to report
routine repairs.
Phase 2 – Booking and cancelling routine repairs directly
Develop additional functionality on the website to embed live repairs
diaries on the website and allow for customers to book and cancel
routine repairs

Nov-22

(subject to other integrations being in place)
Phase 3 – Expanding Digital Options
Research the market/costs and feasibility of other digital options such
as online repair diagnostic tools or other digital options such as AI,
social media and video. Ensure contact centre has ongoing digital
plans and roll out and embed use of Electronic noticeboards

April 2023

Performance
20. Resident satisfaction is our most important indicator of performance.
The methodology used to obtain satisfaction responses affects the
results. Individual job satisfaction taken through text, soon after a
repair is completed, means the experience of the repair appointment is
still vivid in the customer’s mind and will be more informed than a
general perception survey result taken at a later date.
21. The chart below shows the overall levels of satisfaction which are
consistently above 8. Residents have the ability to leave ‘free text’
comments to give us more specific feedback which we review.

Page 10

Aug 2021

Sep 2021

Oct 2021

Nov 2021

Dec 2021

Jan 2022

Feb 2022

Mar 2022

Apr 2022

May 2022

Jun 2022

Jul 2022

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Overall Satisfaction with Landlords Repairs and
Maintenance Service (Pre-emptive RSH Indicator)

7.84

8.06

8.13

9.14

8.9

8.27

7.99

8.11

8.08

8.46

8.19

8.25

Quality of the Repair

8.4

8.63

8.67

9.42

9.2

8.73

8.38

8.27

8.22

8.7

8.6

8.55

Repair was completed within the Agreed Timescale

7.65

8.08

8.45

9.02

9.05

8.24

8.1

8.14

8.42

8.77

8.05

8.43

Worker was Polite and Helpful

8.71

8.98

9.24

9.48

9.43

8.96

8.85

9.39

8.97

9.04

9.09

8.77

Aug 2021

Sep 2021

Oct 2021

Nov 2021

Dec 2021

Jan 2022

Feb 2022

Mar 2022

Apr 2022

May 2022

Jun 2022

Jul 2022

Indicator

Satisfaction Survey Response Rate

Returned
Issued

5%

4%

4%

6%

7%

6%

9%

111

100

100

124

151

120

165

2,325

2,332

2,332

1,916

2,036

1,951

1,803

22. As we evaluate customer responses from transactional satisfaction
scores, we also evaluate feedback in form of complaints, member
enquiries (MEQ) and Ombudsman enquiries. The type of feedback we
received was about booking follow on works, the length of time to resolve
repairs and the durability of the repair. Management of casework is a
priority for the team and we are actively working to de-escalate
complaints and effect timely solutions as a matter of course.
Furthermore, we look into trends and hotspots to see where we can
focus our planned investment to reduce multiple expensive responsive
repairs. For instance, on one block, given the number of leaks
emanating from a failing infrastructure of heating pipes causing
multiple callouts often out-of- hours, we have liaised with colleagues to
bring forward a programme of works to alleviate the issue.

Page 11

Month
May-21
Jun-21
Jul-21
Aug-21
Sep-21
Oct-21
Nov-21
Dec-21
Jan-22
Feb-22
Mar-22
Apr-22
May-22
Jun-22
Jul-22

Complaints
19
30
35
28
31
18
49
31
31
38
44
29
35
25
32

Housing
Final reviews Ombudsman
1
2
2
3
1
0
2
0
2
0
2
1
1
0
1
1
3
1
1
1
0
1
3
3
4
1

MEQ
36
42
33
30
19
34
35
27
24
34
37
25
19
25
36

23. Tenants and leaseholders have the right to invoke formal legal
disrepair protocols where they feel the council has failed to discharge
its repairing obligations as a landlord. The number of disrepair cases
has decreased from the beginning of the year and we are managing
these cases pragmatically. We may contest the assertions made in
some of these claims but where it is evident the Council has failed our
focus is to quickly resolve the disrepair. We are concerned that some
solicitors are canvassing for cases and are linked in with regional and
national groups to share ideas and mitigate the effects. Some
legislative changes such as the Homes (Fit for Habitation) Act which
can widen the scope and duration of proceedings.

Page 12

1.3 Disrepair Cases

Aug 2021

Sep 2021

Oct 2021

Nov 2021

Dec 2021

Jan 2022

Feb 2022

Mar 2022

Apr 2022

May 2022

Jun 2022

Jul 2022

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Legal Disrepair Caseload

29

31

36

46

50

57

66

66

59

56

42

49

Disrepair cases completed

6

2

6

6

6

5

0

17

12

11

12

12

Number of new disrepair cases

8

7

17

5

10

13

9

12

5

7

5

14

Indicator

24.

Response times – the chart below outlines the percentage of jobs completed
on time.
Aug
2021

Indicator

Sep
2021

Oct
2021

Nov
2021

Dec
2021

Jan
2022

Feb
2022

Mar
2022

Apr
2022

May
2022

Jun
2022

Jul
2022

Current
Target

Value Value Value Value Value Value Value Value Value Value Value Value
Total Repairs
Completed in
Time by ERD

91%

76.5% 92.4% 94.5% 93.1% 91.4% 94.4% 95.8% 96.6% 91%

Emergency
84.7% 100% 99.4% 99.4% 100% 99.5% 99.1% 99%
Priority Repairs
Urgent Priority
Repairs

65.8% 99.7% 90.1% 97.3% 98%

Routine Priority
97.8% 68%
Repairs

99%

99%

94.3% 93%

98%

100% 100% 100% 99%

98%

99.3% 100% 97.4% 100% 99.3% 98%

92.1% 93.6% 90.9% 87.9% 92.3% 93.6% 95.2% 89.2% 93%

90.9% 97%

Emergency repairs are completed within 24 hours (4 hours for heating outages
and critical emergencies). Routine repairs are completed within 48 hours and
routine repairs are completed by appointment within 90 days. Our performance
against the emergency and urgent categories is stronger than for the routine
category. Mindful of the new regulatory environment we seek to move to industry
standard repair categories: 24hours, 5 days, 20 days, appointment basis. This
will enable us to organise and plan our work more efficiently.
25. Efficiency indicators – responsive repairs are a demand led service and
the type of
works carried out are variable in nature. As an inhouse team we are interested
in the long-term resolution rather than the per job profit incentive of a contractor.
Currently we are sub-contracting 18% of our work. We have a target to bring this
under 15% by September. The average cost per property of repairs is £169.36
and we anticipate that with the introduction of our new management system CX
we will be able to reduce this further. Productivity is an important consideration
for an inhouse workforce as our labour costs are fixed, our drive to improve
productivity from an average 3.5 jobs per day to an average of 4 will enable us
to derive greater efficiency from our staff.
26. Out of Hours Repairs
Outside working hours, the Council provides an ‘Out of Hours’ repairs service.

Page 13
Residents can report emergency repairs 24 hours a day calling our usual number
and the calls are handled by our contractor. They work every day of the year
including bank holidays and weekends. Only issues which cannot wait until the
following working day to be resolved, will be dealt with by the out of hours
emergency repairs service: that is issues which present a serious risk to resident
safety or to the property itself. Serious leaks and burst pipes, unsafe wiring,
unsecured doors or windows will be attended to in under 4 hours. In all cases the
primary objective is to ‘make safe’ therefore it may be necessary for a follow-up
visit to complete the repair fully. The team operates a duty rota and invokes
protocols when there is for instance, double lift outage, staff are mobilized to
assist residents until the repair is completed.

27.

ERD Plans for assistance for customers over the cost-of-living crisis

Due to the escalatory nature of the energy crisis alongside high inflation and low
growth the ERD team have assessed where we can assist customers to mitigate
some of the effects. There are several elements to our service which have a role:
Service
Supportive Actions
Housing Resolution
Centre



Dealing with customers at
the point of call




Briefed with the latest advice on energy saving from
the Energy Saving Trust, managing damp and mould,
site specific issues
Briefed on planned programme activities
Signposting to organisations offering additional
support e.g. HEET, Shine

From August
ERD Operations
Visiting customers at
home and able to offer
immediate solutions to
many problems





Enhanced checks on repair appointments:
- Draughts from windows, doors and letterboxes
- Insulation check for roofs, water tanks
- Use of Thermostatic Radiator Valves to control
areas of the home to heat
- Checks for damp and mould, adequate ventilation
Winter plan for enhanced checks on elderly and
vulnerable customers

Capacity trial August, fully ready in September
Planned Programme
Concerns which may have
a wider impact need to be
planned and part of a
works package






Following from the repairs visits, some building-wide
issues may need to be addressed as a larger work
package
We will assess the trends of data to inform where
investment could be targeted better e.g. Deficient
windows affecting a whole block, no insulation in a
block
Make amendments to existing plans to incorporate

From August
28.

The HRA revenue budget (gross expenditure of £68.9m), is forecasting a pressure
of £2.3m against the approved budget. Of this, in terms of repairs expenditure: the
service is experiencing inflation and sub-contractor pressures and is estimated to

Page 14

29.

have a budget shortfall of £1.5m if current spend continued. The service has a plan
to reduce expenditure by completing the following urgent actions:
 Reduce works allocated to subcontractors including pausing improvement
works on estates
 Reducing headcount in trade-staff as productivity increases with a target of
3.5 jobs per day to 4 and through efficiencies in the new IT system, Civica.
 Conversion of temporary contracts to permanent. In a challenging time for
recruitment in trade disciplines we intend to convert more temporary
contracts to permanent (from 17 to 27)
 Greater control of repairs demand through the contact centre: higher levels
of accuracy in registering repairs, reduction in duplicate reports and launch
reporting repairs online on the website.
 Completing contractual repairs only. We will become more disciplined to
complete only the repairs we have a contractual obligation under the
tenancy agreement and work to fences, garages, outbuildings, decorating,
lock-changes will be the main areas affected.
 The team are currently modelling further efficiencies which will be required
as the rent cap will put a significant strain on resources.
The repairs service has ambitions for the growth of the service but mindful of the
budget position and start-up costs for new services. Further analysis is needed in
four potential areas of commercial growth:
•
•
•
•

Handy Person Service
Leaseholder Repairs
Voids
Community Assets

Report Author:

Date of report

Martin Greenway
Head of Repairs and Estate
Services
Martin.greenway@enfield.g
ov.uk 0204 526 7122
31.8.22

Page 15

Agenda Item 5

London Borough of Enfield
22 September 2022

Subject: Social Housing Regulation Bill
Cabinet Member: Cllr George Savva, Cabinet Member for Social Housing
Executive Director: Joanne Drew (Acting)

Purpose of Report
1.

This report reviews the preparation of the Council Housing Service for
the Social Housing Regulation bill which is anticipated to pass through
parliament in spring/summer 2023.

2.

It should also be seen in context of the funding of council housing
through the Housing Revenue Account and the proposed Government
consultation seeking to cap rent increases next year. Whilst this is
necessary to support tenants during the cost of living crisis it will put
significant strain on resources – because actual costs of the service
are rising significantly faster than the proposed rent increase. We are
working through options, but this will mean reductions to service
standards and impacts on the investment in existing council homes
and the new build programme, as we seek to balance costs with
income.
Proposals

3.

The Panel is invited to note the contents of the report and make
comments, suggestions or recommendations for further work in readiness.

Relevance to the Council Plan
4.

Preparation for the enactment of the Social Housing Regulation Bill
outlined in this report seek to deliver on the Council’s commitment to
ensure all residents, regardless of whether they are council tenants or
housing association tenants, are provided with good homes in wellconnected neighbourhoods and the creation or management of safe,
healthy and confident communities.

5.

The Council’s Housing and Growth Strategy recognises the importance of
Council Housing.

Background
6.

Three new pieces of legislation were introduced following the Grenfell
tragedy, the Fire Safety Act 2021, the Building Safety Act 2022 (due to be
enacted in around 18 months) and the Social Housing Regulation Bill.

Page 16

7.

In 2020, the Government published a White Paper ‘the Charter for Social
Housing Tenants’, in which it committed to reforming the regulation of
social housing, in particular by strengthening the ability of the Regulator of
Social Housing (the Regulator) to regulate the condition of social housing
and the quality of the services provided by registered providers, non-profit
organisations such as housing associations and co-operatives, profitmaking registered providers, and local authorities.

8.

In June 2022 the Social Housing Regulation Bill was introduced to
Parliament. The expressed aim of the bill is to ensure “more people living
in decent, well looked-after homes enjoying the quality of life they
deserve”. It is anticipated that the Bill will introduce key changes in how
social housing is regulated which include;






9.

Giving the Regulator power to request performance information - the
Tenant Satisfaction Measures (TSM’s).
Enable the Regulator to carry out ‘Ofsted-style’ inspections with 48 hours’
notice.
Give the Regulator the power to issue social landlords with ‘performance
improvement plan notices’ if they fail to meet standards.
Remove the serious detriment test - this currently blocks the Regulator
from intervening over consumer standards unless it suspects tenants are
at risk of serious harm.
Granting new powers to the Housing Ombudsman which further
strengthen the powers given to the Housing Ombudsman in 2020.
Legislation is expected to pass through Parliament by spring/summer
2023. A significant amount of detail about the post-legislative operating
environment is still to be established through consultation by regulatory
authorities throughout 2023 following the passing of legislation.

10. The current regulatory environment is based on landlord self-reporting.
The condition and nature of council housing in London is challenging and
has meant that a number of Local authorities (Barking and Dagenham,
Croydon, Ealing, Greenwich, Lambeth) have self-reported for breaches to
the existing regulatory standards and received notices and improvement
requirements as a result.
The Tenant Satisfaction Measures (TSM’s)
Regulatory Measures
11. One of the fundamental changes proposed is the power for the Regulator
to collect performance information. These measures are intended to let
tenants see how well their landlord is performing and give the Regulator an
idea of which landlords might need to improve things for their tenants.
12. Progress by the Department of Levelling Up Housing and Communities
(DLUHC) on developing and implementing the measures is below:

Page 17
 December 2021-March 2022 – consultation on the proposed measures
took place with landlords, tenants and anyone with an interest in social
housing.
 Summer 2022 - DLUHC publish the consultation responses and the new
Tenant Satisfaction Measures Standard and requirements (this has now
been delayed until October but with the new requirements still starting
from 01 April 2023)
 1 April 2023- new requirements come into force and landlords start
collecting data for tenant satisfaction measures
 Summer 2024 - landlords send DLUHC their first year of tenant
satisfaction measures data.
 Autumn 2024 - first year of tenant satisfaction measures data is published
13. The consultation sets out 22 proposed TSMs for consultation across five
themes:






keeping properties in good repair
maintaining building safety
effective complaints handling
respectful and helpful tenant engagement
responsible neighbourhood management.

The full list of proposed TSM’s are at appendix 1.

Removal of the Serious Detriment Test
14. The Regulators consumer role is currently limited by what is called the
serious detriment test, however, the Government is seeking to remove the
serious detriment test.
15. This measure will enable the regulator to use its monitoring and
enforcement powers in relation to a failure to meet a consumer standard,
without first applying the serious detriment test. Abolishing the serious
detriment test will allow the regulator to intervene on grounds of a breach
or potential breach of the consumer standards, whether or not the breach
in question has caused or may cause tenants serious harm.
16. The 4 consumer standards are:





Home Standard – quality of accommodation and repairs and maintenance
Tenancy Standard – how properties are allocated/exchanged and terms
around tenure
Neighbourhood and Community Standard – issues around neighbourhood
and communal areas and anti-social behaviour
Tenant Involvement and Empowerment Standard – customer service and
complaints, tenant rights and involvement.

The Ombudsman Service
17. Following the publication of the Social Housing White paper, which
committed to keep the Housing Ombudsman’s powers and to consider

Page 18
ways to strengthen them, changes to the Ombudsman’s service are set to
take effect from 1 October 2022. The ‘democratic filter’ is being removed
after a change in the law so residents will no longer have to refer their
complaint to a designated person or wait eight weeks before the
Ombudsman can consider their complaint.
18. From 1 October residents will not have to contact a designated person or
wait eight weeks before referring their complaint to the Ombudsman if they
remain dissatisfied at the end of their landlord’s complaint process.
Removing this barrier will ensure that social housing residents are not
disadvantaged and have direct access to an Ombudsman, as well as
helping to speed up the overall complaints process.
19. We have been working hard to improve our complaints handling processes
and the number of complaints and Ombudsman findings compared to
other similar Boroughs is set out below:

What we are doing to prepare.
20. The twenty-two proposed TSM’s are broken into two groups – those where
the Council will be asked to provide performance data and those where the
Council will collect information from residents directly on their satisfaction
with elements of the service.
21. Raising standards and implementing the expected regulatory changes
requires a corporate level response to join together related services, where
other services are involved in delivering services to estates and tenants.
22. Progress against those TSM’s we are currently measuring against and
preparation for those we do not currently measure are attached at
appendix 2. As noted at 12 above we await confirmation of the final TSM’s
and the technical notes on how they should be collated.
Resident satisfaction
23. Twelve of the proposed TSM’s are satisfaction data, such as ‘satisfaction
that the landlord listens to tenant views and acts upon them’ and
‘satisfaction that the landlord keeps communal areas clean, safe and well
maintained’.
24. The council last undertook a satisfaction survey with tenants and
leaseholders in spring 2021, a further survey will take place in
Autumn/Winter 2022. Overall in 2022 56% of general needs tenants
indicated that they were satisfied with the service, an increase of 4% on
the previous survey but this still represents a below average position –
reflective of the high investment requirements of the stock and relatively
low levels of investment made prior to the last 2 years and the
overcrowding pressures. The insourcing of the repairs service did see an
improvement in satisfaction from this service of +7%.
Performance data

Page 19

25. The remaining ten TSM’s will be generated from management information
collected by social housing providers.
26. The Council is implementing an assurance framework which will dovetail
into the Council’s existing governance structures, supported by clear KPI
reporting. This includes providing the attached KPI information submitted
to Cabinet on a regular basis.
Benchmarking
27. Work is ongoing to ensure we are prepared for the new regulatory regime
and to understand how we are currently performing in comparison with
other authorities and RP’s.
28. This includes partnership with other London boroughs in commissioning a
benchmarking report to understand performance across London relative to
the rest of the country and areas for improvement against the TSM’s.
Progress
Theme
keeping properties in good
repair

Progress
In June 2019, the Cabinet approved the insourcing of the Housing Repairs Service,
this service was launched in May 2020.
We have a performance management
process in place to give us assurance that
call quality is high and we can give feedback
to staff on potential for improvement as part
of our continuous improvement drive. This
involves call audits, listening to calls in real
time and coaching.

maintaining building safety

Monthly reporting and monitoring of KPI’s
which indicate how well the repairs service
is performing.
Continuing investment in safe, Decent
Homes.
Developed a robust assurance framework to
ensure our performance against the building
safety measures.

effective complaints handling

Investing in new Council Homes to
rebalance age/condition of stock and meet
family housing needs.
In repairs a performance management
process in place to give us assurance that
call quality is high which involves call audits,
listening to calls in real time and coaching.

Page 20
The council’s new Verint system allows
better oversight and management of
complaints handling including lessons
learned.

respectful and helpful tenant
engagement

Monthly reporting and monitoring of KPI’s
which indicate how well we are performing.
The 2022 Involvement Strategy outlines
how we are improving communication,
engagement and consultation with residents
and stakeholders.
We created a dedicated Contact Centre for
Housing repairs to improve the customer
journey, a Housing Resolution Centre was
established in January 2022.

responsible neighbourhood
management.

The Tenant Participation and Advisory
Service are supporting us in enhancing the
impact of the Customer Voice, our tenant
and leaseholder representative body.
The Council Housing service was
restructured in 2022 to ensure a focus on
both the highest priority estates and
complex case management and support of
our most vulnerable residents.
Standards of grounds maintenance were
enhanced in 2021/22.
We are using Low Income Family Tracking
(LIFT) data to allow us to focus support on
those families most at risk from economic
stress.
We are working towards Domestic Abuse
Housing Alliance (DAHA) accreditation,
DAHA is the UK benchmark for how housing
providers should respond to domestic abuse
in the UK.
Developing a Domestic Abuse and Housing
strategy in line with advice from DAHA.
Developed a Tenancy Strategy 2022-24 to
set high standards for tenancies in the
Borough so that our residents live as
healthily, safely, and independently as
possible.
We have an Allocations Policy which makes
clear that we make best use of available

Page 21
housing.
We are undertaking a review of how we
manage cases of anti-social behaviour
including client satisfaction.
London Council’s Five Pillars Assessment
22. The London Housing Directors’ Group, supported by London Councils, have
worked with local authority staff, councillors and residents to illustrate
principles, actions and practices that should support effective delivery of
local authority landlord services. These have been grouped by theme, giving
five ‘pillars’ that hold up a high-performing local authority landlord service.
These are:






Vision and strategy,
Leadership,
Management,
Performance & compliance, and
Assurance.

23. We will assess ourselves against the Five Pillars as part of our preparation
and identify actions to improve any areas identified as gaps.
Challenges
24. There are challenges in preparing for housing regulation;






Government still needs to address some of the underlying challenges
facing the sector, from under-funding through to the shortfall in overall
supply.
There is current uncertainty around the rent setting formula applied to
local authorities, consultation is ongoing.
Pressure from the impact on residents on the current cost of living crisis
may divert resource away from preparation priorities.
We need to align resources of the HRA business plan to priorities for the
new environment, ensure the "who benefits test" is applied.

Conclusions
1. The Panel will note our preparation for the new social housing regulatory
regime.

Report Author:

September 2022

Karen Lucas
Head of Housing Management
Karen.lucas@enfield.gov.uk

Page 22

Appendices
Appendix 1
Draft Tenant Satisfaction measures
TP01 Overall satisfaction
TP02 Satisfaction with repairs
TP03 Satisfaction with time taken to complete most recent repair
TP04 Satisfaction that the home is well maintained and safe to live in
TP05 Satisfaction that the landlord listens to tenant views and acts upon
them
TP06 Satisfaction that the landlord keeps tenants informed about things that
matter to them
TP07 Agreement that the landlord treats tenants fairly and with respect
TP08 Satisfaction that the landlord keeps communal areas clean, safe and
well maintained
TP09 Wording options subject to consultation:
Satisfaction that the landlord makes a positive contribution to
neighbourhoods
Or
Satisfaction with neighbourhood as a place to live
TP10 Satisfaction with the landlord’s approach to handling of anti-social
behaviour
TP11 Satisfaction with the landlord’s approach to handling of complaints
TP12 Tenant knowledge of how to make a complaint
NM01 Anti-social behaviour cases relative to the size of the landlord
CH01 Complaints relative to the size of the landlord
CH02 Complaints responded to within Complaint Handling Code timescales
RP01 Homes that do not meet the Decent Homes Standard
RP02 Repairs completed within target timescale
BS01 Gas safety checks
BS02 Fire safety checks
BS03 Asbestos safety checks
BS04 Water safety checks
BS05 Lift safety checks
Appendix 2.
Performance against TSM’s

Performance Against Existing Indicators
Q1
2022/23
Indicator

Value

Annual
Target
2022/23

Notes

Page 23

Indicator

Q1
2022/23
Value

Annual
Target
2022/23

Notes

CH103 (NEW) Repairs
Completed Within Target
Timescale (YTD)

95.72%

98%

This is a new measure that focusses on just
council housing repairs and excludes
emergencies in line with the regulators TSM
guidance.

CH125 (NEW) Percentage
of Repairs Completed
Right First Time

80%

80%

Data provided showing Q1 figure of 80%.

CH069 (RP01) Homes
That Do Not Meet the
Decent Homes Standard

HO008 The percentage of
council owned homes
which have a current gas
safety certificate

CH074 (NEW) Complaints
Responded to Within
Complaint Handling Code
Timescales

CH098 (NEW) Legionella
Risk Assessments

CH124 Properties with lift
testing (Passenger Lift)
CH079 (NEW) Tenant
Satisfaction with Landlord
Contribution to
Neighbourhood
Associated with their
Home (TP09)

CH109 (NEW) Satisfaction

40.02%

98.8%

88.2%

64.99%

87.34%

37.09%

A revised decency strategy has been agreed,
providing a clear pathway for continued
annual performance improvement. Progress
against this strategy was slowed in Q1, while
budgets were adjusted in line with financial
constraints. The programme ramps up from
September 2022 and is projected to achieve
the annual target.

100%

Council Housing SMT agreed that from
2022/23 KPI would show as red if dropping
below 100% to facilitate exception reporting
.

100%

This reflects the total responded to in time
for Council Housing for both first and final
stages. This measure is currently based on 20
working days for stage 1. Q2 targets are set
in line with the ombudsman code of conduct
and therefore this measure will be more
accurate as will be in line with the complaint
handling code timescales and not Enfield’s

100%

100%

64.99% of properties with Legionella Risk
Assessments completed. We are increasing
testing on a monthly basis – and anticipate
being at 100% by the end of this calendar
year.
A number of lifts are outside of the testing
programme. We are looking to improve
compliance in this area with more robust
contract management

67%

Previous survey results for General Needs
tenants 2021, question % satisfied with
No target
neighbourhood as a place to live.
currently
set for this
Communication plan in place to increase
measure
resident awareness of work undertaken to
better manage our estates.

66%

No target Next survey planned for Autumn 2022

Page 24

Indicator

Q1
2022/23
Value

That the Home is Well
Maintained and Safe to
Live in (TP04)

Annual
Target
2022/23

Notes

currently Previous survey results for General Needs
set for this tenants 2021. Next survey planned for
measure Autumn 2022
Communication plan in place to increase
resident awareness of work undertaken to
better manage our estates.

CH081 (NEW) Tenant
Satisfaction With
Landlords Handling of
Antisocial
Behaviour(TP10)

28%

Previous survey results for General Needs
tenants 2021, question % satisfied with way
ASB issue was dealt with by local housing
No target
team. Result: 28% Next survey planned for
currently
Autumn 2022.
set for this
measure
Actions from a current review of our
handling of ASB cases will address
performance against this indictor.

New Indicators
Indicator

CH092 Fire Safety Checks

CH093 (NEW) Asbestos Safety Checks
CH075 (TP05) Satisfaction That the Landlord
Listens to Tenant Views and Acts Upon Them
CH076 (TP06) Satisfaction That the Landlord
Keeps Tenants Informed About Things That
Matter to Them
CH078 (NEW) Tenant Satisfaction With
Landlord Actions to Keep Communal Areas
Clean and Safe(TP08)
CH065f Satisfaction with Time Taken to
Complete Most Recent Repair (TP03)
CH073 (TP11) Satisfaction With the Landlord’s
Approach to Handling of Complaints
CH126 (NEW) Agreement That the Landlord
Treats Tenants Fairly and With Respect (TP07)

We currently undertake fire risk assessments
currently on all blocks in a 1-3-year cycle
dependent on risk. We await technical
guidance on how this indicator will be
measured.
We currently undertake checks on a 1-5-year
programme based on risk. We await technical
guidance on how this indicator will be
measured.
Next survey planned for Autumn 2022
Next survey planned for Autumn 2022

Next survey planned for Autumn 2022

Next survey planned for Autumn 2022
Next survey planned for Autumn 2022
Next survey planned for Autumn 2022

Page 25

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 27

Agenda Item 6

London Borough of Enfield
Housing Scrutiny Panel – Tuesday 22nd September 2022

Subject: Housing Gateway Ltd
Cabinet Member: Cllr Savva
Executive Director: Joanne Drew (Acting)

Purpose of Report
1.1

This report provides a summary of the Renters Reform White Paper and
amendments to the Smoke and Carbon Monoxide Regulations 2022.

Relevance to the Council Plan
2.1

Good Homes in Well Connected Neighbourhoods – The White Paper
seeks to improve the private rented sector. It outlines plans to provide
tenants with easier routes to ensure landlords provide good quality
accommodation and also further support responsible landlords with their
ability to obtain possession of the property where there are good grounds.

2.2

The main thrust of the paper aligns to that of the Councils homelessness
model which focusses on homeless prevention and strengthening the
rights of the tenant.

Background
3.1

The Renters Reform White Paper was published on 16th June 22, the
proposals in the paper outline a new private renter’s bill. The Government
intends to bring forward this Bill in the 2022-23 parliamentary session.

3.2

Central government believe that the Private Rented Sector (PRS) does
not meet the needs of all residents and aim to deliver a fairer, more secure
and high quality PRS by focussing on the following main points:
Safe and Decent Homes.

3.3

The intention is to apply similar property quality expectations to the PRS
as are already applied in the social sector. The government plans to
legislate to introduce a legally binding decent Homes Standard for the
PRS.

3.4

A consultation on the details of Decent Homes Standard for the PRS has
just been launched which provides the headlines for the standard:
a) It meets the current statutory minimum standard for housing, i.e.
free from category 1 hazards.
b) It is in a reasonable state of repair.
c) It has reasonable facilities and services.

Page 28
d) It provides a reasonable degree of thermal comfort.
The Government aims to halve the number of non-decent homes by 2030.
3.5

The paper further reiterates the government’s intention for homes in the
PRS sector to be upgraded to EPC band C by 2030.
Increased Security & Stability.

3.6

The focus of the Government is to abolish Section 21 “no-fault” evictions.
Under the new system tenants will be required to give two months’ notice
prior to leaving a tenancy and landlords will only be able to evict a tenant
in “reasonable circumstances”.

3.7

The government plans to seek a balance between the tenant’s access to a
stable tenancy and the landlord’s ability to manage the tenancy by
reforming the grounds for possession. Notice periods will be provided for
landlords wishing to sell their property. Also changes to the grounds for
possession will be introduced to manage tenants in arrears and those
exhibiting anti-social behaviour.
Improved Dispute Resolution.

3.8

The Government intends to empower tenants to challenge their landlords
where standards are not being met. They plan to create a new
ombudsman which will replicate the work that the Housing Ombudsman
does for the social sector. The aim of the Ombudsman will be to make
complaints and remediation both quicker and cheaper for tenants. The
new ombudsman will have powers to compel landlords to pay
compensation up to £25k.

3.9

The Government plans to challenge unjustified rent increases by only
allowing one rent increase per year and increase the minimum notice
landlords must give for a rent increase to two months.
Better Compliance and Robust Enforcement.

3.10

Landlords will be required by law, to join a new property portal that will
allow Councils to trace and enforce landlords. The property portal will also
give landlords and tenants information about their rights.

3.11

The court process will also be overhauled, with the aim of the ombudsman
freeing up court time to deal with serious housing cases.
Smoke and Carbon Monoxide Regulations 2022

3.12

In May 2022 an amendment to the Smoked and Carbon Monoxide
Regulations 2022 were laid in draft, before Parliament. If approved, they
are expected to come in to force in Oct 2022.

3.13

The amendment means:

Page 29




Social landlords will be required to provide a smoke alarm on every
story of their property.
Both social and private landlords will be required to provide carbon
monoxide detectors in any room with a fixed combustion appliance
(excluding gas cookers).
An obligation on all landlords to repair or replace any alarm found
faulty.

3.14

It should be noted that as yet, no funding has been identified to assist with
the implementation of the proposals, in particular the Local Government
enforcement role. London Council’s have submitted evidence to request
funding to algin with the implementation of the Bill.

3.15

In addition the White Paper does not address the main issues of
affordability and supply of accommodation in the PRS. This remains one
of the Council’s biggest challenges and contributors to budget pressures.

Main Considerations for the Panel
4.1

The values of the Renters Reform White Paper align with that of the
Council’s Housing and Growth Strategy. The Council has a key role to
play in shaping the private rented sector by the introduction of the
selective licensing scheme and the continued growth of Housing Gateway
Ltd (HGL).

Impact on the PRS
4.2

In principle reputable PRS landlords should support the introduction of the
changes brought about by the Bill. In some respects, the Bill will
strengthen the landlord’s position in particular, reforming landlord’s rights
to regain their property when its fair and reasonable to do so.
The
introduction of a new Private Rented Property Portal will support compliant
landlords and make it easier for them to understand their duties and
evidence their compliance. Tenants will also have access to the
information on the portal to help them make informed choices about where
they choose to live. However, it is reasonable to assume that the changes
will result in some increased costs to landlords i.e. improving the energy
efficiency of a property to reduce hazards, such as cold and damp, and
the registration for joining the landlord portal. In the last 6 months we
have seen landlords exiting from the market as letting a property has
become less financially rewarding and these additional elements may see
this trend continue.

4.3

The Decent Homes Standard for the PRS is broadly consistent with the
existing standard in the social rented sector. It is considered that most
reputable landlords will already provide a property which meets these
standards and therefore won't require any additional investment.
Therefore, the introduction of Decent Homes Standard in the PRS is
anticipated to have minimal impact on the sector for those landlords.
However, there is a risk that some landlords may prefer to exit the market
and sell their properties rather than make upgrades, or pass costs on to
tenants.

Page 30

4.4

As with most businesses there are always some sectors who fail to
comply with legislation and this is also true with the PRS. Unfortunately,
there are some landlords who operate in the Borough who will not comply
with the legislation and continue to operate providing substandard
housing. It is proposed that any breaches of the standards would be
considered a criminal offence and subject to either a civil penalty or
prosecution, The Council’s Private Rented Housing Team will be
responsible for enforcing any breaches. That said it is essential that
Government provide suitable funding, powers and guidance to enable the
Council to enforce noncompliance of the standard
as this cannot be
carried out within existing resources. There will be significant challenges
for staffing the enforcement of the standards due to difficulties in
recruitment and retention of experienced officers.

4.5

The Private Rented Housing Team are in consultation with DLUHC to
discuss the details of the Decent Homes standard, specifically the
enforcement of the standard to further influence the proposals.

Impact on Build to Rent
4.6

Build to Rent is a growing housing product within the PRS. Build to Rent
are new build developments designed specifically for renting. They
typically come with a range of benefits including on site management,
communal spaces (roof terrace, eating space) and gyms.

4.7

At present there has been no mention about the Build to Rent sector in the
Private Renters Bill and so it is unclear if any exemptions will be applied.
The quality of this type of accommodation is typically very high and so the
accommodation will already exceed the quality requirements of the Bill.

HGL’s Portfolio Position
4.8

HGL has a portfolio of 660 owned properties and 250 leased properties
which means it is one of the largest PRS landlords in the borough. HGL is
well placed to meet the proposed requirements of the Renters Reform
White Paper.

4.9

HGL’s properties are renovated internally to an agreed letting standard at
the initial point of acquisition. The HGL letting standard exceeds the
current Decent Homes requirement applied to Social Housing and so
property standards are expected to already exceed those applied in the
new scheme for kitchens and bathrooms. However, in flats for example
components such as roofs, external walls, plumbing and electrics that are
the responsibility of the freeholder and therefore will be subject to those
investment programmes which are then recharged to HGL as the
leaseholder.

4.10

HGL only seeks to gain possession of a property if the tenants are
breaching the terms of the tenancy agreement, i.e. anti-social behaviour or
arrears. Therefore, the proposed change could assist HGL in making sure

Page 31
its properties are available for tenants who want to abide by the tenancy
agreement.
4.11

HGL would welcome the introduction of an ombudsman and are confident
that processes and properties would stand up to scrutiny.

4.12

HGL is committed to no more than one rent increase per year already, as
part of setting exemplary landlord standards. HGL will however, need to
factor in the additional months’ notice required to implement a rent
increase.

4.13

At this stage it is not known if there will be a cost attached to joining a
property portal and how much resource would be required. These factors
aside, HGL have an accurate database, so the information is readily
available.

4.14

Court reforms speeding up the process to obtain possession would be
welcomed as under the current process it can take up to a year to gain
possession of a property.

4.15

HGL already installs a smoke alarm on every story of the property and fit
carbon monoxide detectors as standard. However, the new obligation to
repair or replace a faulty alarm is an additional requirement and will need
to be implemented via the Property inspections carried out by the Property
Managers

Housing Advisory Service
4.16

These proposals are all welcome developments in improving the quality of
properties in the private rented sector. However, for landlords, the high
market value combined with the cost of improving their properties means
that many are exiting the market, and this is a trend that may be expected
to continue.

4.17

These factors have led to a shortage of the supply of privately rented
properties and a rise in rent levels. Research carried out by Savills (on
behalf of Capital Letters) suggests that rents have increased in Enfield by
between 4% and 6%. They also found that there had been a 42%
reduction in the supply of private rented properties in Enfield over the last
two years.

4.18

These figures match the experience of the Housing Advisory Service. The
supply of private rented properties at Local Housing Allowance rents has
reduced by 61% over the last year

Conclusions
5.1

The Councils priority of “Good Homes in Well Connected
Neighbourhoods” aligns with the proposals in the Renters Reform White
Paper. However, funding for the Local Authority enforcement role will
need to be provided and the Council will lobby to this effect.

Page 32

Report Author:

Kayt Wilson
Head of Private Housing Solutions
Kayt.wilson@enfield.gov.uk

Date of report:

8th September 2022

Appendices
N/A
Background Papers
N/A

HOUSING SCRUTINY PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 2022/23
Date of
meeting

Topic

5 July 2022

Work Planning

22
September
2022

Executive
Director/
Director

Reason for proposal

Social Housing
Regulation Bill & the
impact on Enfield
Private Renters
Reform Bill & the
impact on Enfield
Enfield Repairs Direct overview on
delivery, efficiency,
response times and
out of hours repairs.

Richard
Sorenson

Cllr Savva

Joanne Drew

Richard
Sorenson

Cllr Savva

Joanne Drew

Martin
Greenway

Cllr Savva

Joanne Drew

A priority as set out by the
Cabinet Member and
Director.
A priority as set out by the
Cabinet Member and
Director.
A priority as set out by the
Cabinet Member and
Director.

Draft Housing & Good
Growth Strategy to
inform the Panel
Delivery of Social &
Affordable Housing (to
include an update on
Meridian Water)

Nnenna Urum Eke

Cllr
Caliskan

Joanne Drew

Amena Martin /
Penny Halliday

Cllr Savva

Joanne
Drew/Peter
George

Housing
Gateway/Enfield Let Update

Kayt Wilson

Cllr Savva

Joanne Drew

A priority as set out by the
Director.

Temporary

Richard

Cllr Savva

Joanne Drew

A priority as set out by the

Other committee/
Cabinet/Council
approvals?

A priority as set out by the
Cabinet Member and
Director.
A priority as set out by the
Director as a new bill is
due out on this.

Agenda Item 7

22 March
2022

Lead
Members

Page 33

29
November
2022

Lead officer

Accommodation and
Sorenson
Empty Homes focusing
on the levels and
strategy to reduce.
Preventing
Richard
Homelessness and
Sorenson
Rough Sleeping – the
Panel will receive an
update of the Strategy

Cabinet Member and
Director.

Cllr Savva

Joanne Drew

A priority as set out by the
Cabinet Member and
Director.

Page 34

